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TO THE MEMBERS OF HONG KONG PRODUCTIVITY COUNCIL
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under the Hong Kong Productivity Council
Ordinance)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong
Productivity Council (the “Council”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set
out on pages 5 to 60, which comprise the consolidated and the Council’s
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024, and the consolidated
income and expenditure account, the consolidated and the Council’s statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in funds and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Group and the Council as at 31 March 2024, and of
the financial performance of the Group and the Council and the Group's cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT OF THE COUNCIL FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management of the Council are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Productivity Council
Ordinance, and for such internal control as management of the Council
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management of the Council
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management of the Council either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Audit Committee assists the Council members in overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 18 of the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the management of the Council.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

4 4ENE BYBREERSRIMERE  HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2023-24
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BREMMBT RV BERRAENET (8 AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

STEREVBMENBEIRA N - & . Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
MAR - BEFE  UAREEHBERER consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
AR A REABZSMEE - the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

B OEEEANERAEBEDINUBER . Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
BEIRER BHEMETTRE UEHEKSE information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
BB ERERER RMBELEEETH express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
FE - BEEMT B AETERAE responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
2HEME - audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

BREMEIEEN  RMEEAEZEGED TS We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,

MEFSHE FETHE EXBFAHEAEZT 8 the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

R ERTH 5 A EBIE B8 (E R EZAFRE o including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

BREUEREZGAMEBABERAR BDO Limited

BEGETAD Certified Public Accountants

REF Yu Tsui Fong

MELZ5E  P05440 Practicing Certificate Number P05440

B 2024577181 Hong Kong, 18 July 2024
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mEBARRE
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

MN202453 31 B Asat31 March 2024

2024 2023
e BT T BT T
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
VI - =M Property, plant and equipment 6 207,313 191,696
mEAE Intangible assets 7 18,892 13,643
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets 13 76 569
226,281 205,908
REBEE Current assets
FEUWER R R Mt mE & E Accounts receivable and other current 326,718 279,567
assets 9
BRe  |RITFEXREEHRFR Cash, bank balances and fixed deposits 10 1,860,964 1,996,984
2,187,682 2,276,551
REBEE Current liabilities
BB R EMTE A E Accounts payable and other current 1,713,799 1,849,725
liabilities 11
HEBE Lease liabilities 14 77 533
FE TR Tax payable 23(c) 35 46
1,713,911 1,850,304
RBEEFE Net current assets 473,771 426,247
BEERRBERE Total assets less current liabilities 700,052 632,155
RBERE Non-current liabilities
HEBE Lease liabilities 14 20 103
FEE Net assets 700,032 632,052
wEe Total funds
SEENREGLGEREE L@HE Capital subvention fund and 697,910 630,049
reserves attributable to the Council
eI iE = Non-controlling interests 15(d) 2,122 2,003
15 700,032 632,052

EENBR2024F7 18 BREWFTFAIEH o
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 18 July 2024.

Sunny Tan Emil Yu Chen-on
BR1H18 TRz
2 EIEE
Chairman Deputy Chairman

6 LEHE BUEEIIRERIIERE  HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2023-24
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B 7 AR R 3R
Statement of Financial Position

MR2024%3 831 B Asat31 March 2024

2024 2023
e BET T BT T
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
Y% - BE MR Property, plant and equipment 6 206,533 190,999
mEAE Intangible assets 7 18,879 13,627
FREEE Right-of-use assets 13 - 424
RETBABNIRE Investments in subsidiaries 8 18,722 18,722
244,134 223,772
REBEE Current assets
FEURFR R EM R e & E Accounts receivable and other current 318,807 272,188
assets 9
JE U B BB AN RN IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 12 1,761 1,238
W& RITFRSEBRFR Cash, bank balances and fixed deposits 10 1,827,001 1,963,741
2,147,569 2,237,167
REBEE Current liabilities
ENERLEMRESEE Accounts payable and other current 1,703,473 1,838,280
liabilities 11
RN Amounts due to subsidiaries 12 13,193 11,685
HEARE Lease liabilities 14 - 466
1,716,666 1,850,431
RBEEFE Net current assets 430,903 386,736
FEE Net assets 675,037 610,508
wnEe Total funds 15 675,037 610,508

HE AR 202447 B 18 B ORI AL -
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 18 July 2024.

Sunny Tan Emil Yu Chen-on
BRIE1E Tz
FE e
Chairman Deputy Chairman

HENR B RBEIHRE RIS HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2023-24 7
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mEERBEK
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds

HZE 20243 A31HIEFE  Forthe year ended 31 March 2024

BEREENR
Attributable to the Council
&R
- {:kA A FERER
Capital EBIfEE BREHE Non- E&#%E
subvention Revenue Exchange # % controlling Total
fund reserve reserve Total interests funds

BETT BETT BE®TR B¥ETr BT BEETR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

R2022%F4 B 1 BEV& % At 1 April 2022 98,685 492,297 3,155 594,137 2,006 596,143
FREH Surplus for the year - 43,734 - 43,734 186 43920
FREM D E R - Other comprehensive income for the
year.
BEhE A RN Exchange difference on translation of - - (2,106) (2,106) (189) (2,295)
(GEEE S 3= ) financial statements of operations in
EHER the People’s Republic of China
("PRCY
FREEHKRAE Total comprehensive income for the - 43,734 (2,106) 41,628 3) 41,625
year
BAREHSEE (M5E15@) Movementin capital subvention (5,716) - - (5,716) - (5,716)
fund (note 15(a))
R2023F3A31 HMEE A3l March 2023 92,969 536,031 1,049 630,049 2,003 632,052
2023 4 A1 B At 1 April 2023 92,969 536,031 1,049 630,049 2,003 632,052
FREER Surplus for the year - 74,894 - 74,894 234 75,128
FHEMEEYE Other comprehensive income for the
year.
BEPEEKEENEN  Exchange difference on translation of - - (1,355) (1,355) (115) (1,470)
=R financial statements of operations in
the PRC
FRAEZHEKRRARE Total comprehensive income for the - 74,894 (1,355) 73,539 119 73,658
year
BEARAEHEEE (M5E15@) Movementin capital subvention (5,678) - - (5,678) - (5,678)
fund (note 15(a))
R2024F3A31 HEES  At31 March 2024 87,291 610,925 (306) 697,910 2,122 700,032

8 LENRE B EEMRERIMIEME  HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2023-24
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HREWXRE

Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account

HZE2024F3A31HIEFE  Forthe year ended 31 March 2024

2024 2023
e BET T BT T
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
WA Income
SR MEEERBITE B Government subvention for recurrent 244,373 239,283
activities 16
PR 75 WA Service income 17 847,842 752,028
E A Other income 18 45,311 22,010
1,137,526 1,013,321
] Expenditure
BEHE Staff emoluments 19 (517,123) (482,302)
HEM= Other expenses 22 (550,838) (492,648)
BR i AT 2 Bh Surplus before tax 69,565 38,371
FTiS Income tax expense 23(a) (115) (167)
69,450 38,204
WEREBNSEA Transfer from capital subvention fund 15(a) 5,678 5716
FRER Surplus for the year 75,128 43,920
BER: Attributable to:
EENR The Council 15(b) 74,894 43,734
IR R Non-controlling interests 15(d) 234 186
75,128 43,920

HEND B RSRE RIS HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2023-24 9
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mEEmEWRER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2024

HE204F3831HILFE

2024 2023
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FRELR Surplus for the year 75,128 43,920
Hih 2 EW = Other comprehensive income
ARNEEENRERAZERZEREN Other comprehensive income that may
Efh M be reclassified to income and expenditure
account in subsequent periods:
B hE A REFE ([FE] Exchange differences on translation of financial (1,470) (2,295)
EBMBREANEREZR statements of operations in the People’s
Republic of China
FREMEEEE (FE) Other comprehensive income for the year, (1,470) (2,295)
net of tax
FRE2EKBE Total comprehensive income for the year 73,658 41,625
BER: Attributable to:
EENR The Council 73,539 41,628
JEVE AR M 2 Non-controlling interests 119 3)
73,658 41,625

10 £E1Hp B ZEETRERHMISHES  HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2023-24
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2H W SR

Statement of Comprehensive Income

HZE2024F3A31HIEFE  Forthe year ended 31 March 2024

2024 2023
M5 BET T BT T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
WA Income
KEEESNHRNTED Government subvention for recurrent 244,373 239,283
activities 16
R 75 4 A Service income 17 810,144 719,001
E A Other income 18 44,922 21,619
1,099,439 979,903
FH Expenditure
BEH&E Staff emoluments 19 (507,003) (473,405)
HEM¥ Other expenses 22 (527,907) (473,148)
B B AT & B Surplus before tax 64,529 33,350
Frisi Income tax expenses 23(a) - -
64,529 33,350
REXREPSEA Transfer from capital subvention fund 15(a) 5,678 5716
FREBKREZEEE Surplus and total comprehensive
income for the year 15(b) 70,207 39,066

HEND B REHRE RESES  HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 202324 11
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MEEERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE 20243 A31HIEFE  Forthe year ended 31 March 2024

2024 2023
Notes BET T BT
liks3 HK$’000 HK$'000
RETHELENRESRE Cash flows from operating activities
R B B 2 B4 Surplus before tax 69,565 38,371
FHEEIF - Adjustments for:
) 2 U A Interest income 18 (12,877) 6,518)
HERRZME Interest expense on lease liabilities 22 5 32
Y REFREHEHEEE  Loss on disposal of property, plant and 22 977 5,187
equipment
BREEENLEHESE Loss on disposal of intangible asset 22 - 4
e Depreciation 22 38,537 37,326
By Amortisation 22 8,563 7,048
EEEBEE Provision for expected credit losses 9() 141 (141)
EEESRHACRERR Operating surplus before working capital 104,911 81,309
changes
FEUWRR R EMABEEE I Increase in accounts receivable and (47,482) (50,070)
other current assets
SR\, (Em) Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash 150,193 (245,643)
ERERMEMRESEE (Decrease)/increase in accounts payable and (135,065) 306,563
Rk 2>),/38 hn other current liabilities
KEEENRS Cash generated from operations 72,557 92,159
BB EMEH PRC corporate income tax paid 23(c) (107) Q71)
BRETHELENRESHREFE  Netcash from operating activities 72,450 91,888
REFZHELENEESRE Cash flows from investing activities
B F B Interest received 12,877 6,518
1% = (& A A L EBTFRR Increase in fixed deposits with original (465,715) (600,676)
maturities over 3 months when placed
— B AN EEEFEREIEFE  Proceeds from matured fixed deposits with 460,892 475477
I8 original maturities over 3 months when
placed
HEWE - BEMREFSFIA Proceeds from disposal of property, 920 14
plant and equipment
HBEWE  BEM&E Purchase of property, plant and equipment (54,750) (47,048)
BEEFEE Purchase of intangible assets (13,813) (11,206)
RETHEANESRETEE  Netcash used in investing activities (60,419) (176,920)
AMETHRESRE Cash flows from financing activities
BEHEERE Lease payments 14 (535) (520)
BMETBHEANEESREZEE  Net cash used in financing activities (535) (520)
HeRREEEY Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 11,496 (85,553)
#an,Crd) F58 equivalents
RekReFEMRUIHKRE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 165,306 254,528
ERFEHNTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (2,252) (3,669)
HERASEEYHRGEE Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10 174,550 165,306

12 £E1hp B ZEERERMISHS  HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2023-24
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e R RME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

202493 A31H 31 March 2024

1. XENRNMKEEM 1. COUNCIL AND GROUP INFORMATION
EREENRER((EX£ENR]D R—RBUTE The Council is a subvented body corporate established in 1967 under the Hong
MRS - 71967 FARIBCE B EE DR EBIIKGID Kong Productivity Council Ordinance. The address of its registered office and
- EENREMMEEMEZLE I principal place of operation is at HKPC Building, 78 Tat Chee Avenue, Kowloon,
MU A B BNEEZ K 78REE NI KE - Hong Kong.

SENRREMBAR (GBIEEDNEEXE The principal activities of the Council and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
BREERSEEN  HEEARMAIRAER the "Group”) are to promote increased productivity, encourage the more
WiBBMESEEEE  FEARBN  REE efficient utilisation of resources, and to advise measures designed to increase
EREAEIMEAE B - productivity via development or dissemination of programmes, methods or

techniques for the business sectors in Hong Kong.

MiEAREM Information about subsidiaries
SEDRHBARMFBOT : Particulars of the Council’s subsidiaries are as follows:
3 HEE A Bft /S
SR AL R BBITR BB HR NG
=t EEME HEMER B ®E BE TE#EK
Name Place of Particulars Group’s Held Heldby Principal
incorporation of issued and effective bythe subsidiaries activities
and operation registered capital interest Council
HENRHR (BR) BRAF Bt 7 #100007T 100% 100% - BREENRERZE
MIEBEKRE ML
HKPC Technology (Holdings) Hong Kong HK$10,000 Commercialisation of
Company Limited patents project
deliverables of HKPC
HENER)BRATF BB 7% 20,000,000 7T 100% 100% - REER
Productivity (Holdings) Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 Investment holding
HEN(RR)BARRIA & 7 #: 5,000,000 7T 100% - 100% AR RSB DR
Productivity (Dongguan) PRC HK$5,000,000 Consultancy and training
Consulting Co. Ltd. services
REH (R #EAER QA FE 511,610,000 7T 100% - 100% R R SR A1 AR A%
Productivity (Shenzhen) PRC HK$1,610,000 Consultancy and training
Consulting Co. Ltd. services
RIARBEENEMBR DA P AR 1,540,000 7T 64.94% - 64.94% &R KI5 I AR
Shenzhen SZ-HK Productivity PRC RMB1,540,000 Consultancy and training
Foundation Co. Ltd. services
RYFELEENREWEIH O P AR 500007C 64.94% - 100% S HIARES
Shenzhen SZ-HK Productivity PRC RMB50,000 Training services

Foundation Training Institute

HEND B REHRE RESHS  HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2023-24 1.3
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1. £EIRMNEEER®)
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Wk -

BEREENRERZRINGIF R0 (FBH)
(fsircl)

SITCR—EFEEAEN - MEENBAASITC
MBI B 2 — o STCE AN IRHAIFHRI B E
RHEEEETI A KRG MEERERHERE -

REBTPEARRNBEERERER  FEZEA
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DENE - AREENRTEZERAAEZEEN
o W NEEEBEYNITCHRMNEENTE
EEER - At EEN BRI KA G STCHMEK -

1. COUNCIL AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Agreement related to Hong Kong Industrial Artificial Intelligence and
Robotics Centre Limited (“FLAIR")

FLAIR was incorporated as a company limited by guarantee with the Council as
the sole member. FLAIR aims to develop innovative solutions on artificial
intelligence and robotics technologies to facilitate the intelligent manufacturing
for Hong Kong enterprises.

Although the Council is the sole member of FLAIR, the Council has not
consolidated the results of FLAIR since under the terms of the agreement
entered into with the Government, the Council is not exposed to, and does not
have the rights or the power to affect variable returns from its involvement with
FLAIR.

Hong Kong Productivity Council Shenzhen Innovation and Technology
Centre (Futian) (“SITC")

SITC was formed as an institution with the Council as one of the founders of
SITC. SITC aims to provide non-profit making public services relating to the
application of innovation and technology and support the development of the
Greater Bay Area.

According to the relevant law and regulations of the People’s Republic of China,
an institution has no shareholders or members, accordingly no profits can be
distributed to the Council. As the Council is not exposed to, and does not have
the rights or the power to affect variable returns from its involvement with SITC,
the Council has not consolidated the results of SITC.

14 £E1p B ZEERERBISHS  HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2023-24
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

(@)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — Effective 1 April 2023

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments
Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8

Definition of Accounting Estimates

Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction

Amendments to HKAS 12

International Tax Reform— Pillar Two Model
Rules

Amendments to HKAS 12

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements)

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) issued HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements in March 2021 to provide
entities with non-mandatory guidance on how to make materiality judgements
when preparing their general purpose financial statements in accordance with
HKFRS. In April 2021, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2. The amendments aim to make accounting policy
disclosures more informative by replacing the requirement to disclose
‘significant accounting policies” with ‘material accounting policy information’.
The amendments also provide guidance under what circumstance, the
accounting policy information is likely to be considered material and therefore
requiring disclosure.

These amendments have no effect on the measurement or presentation of any
items in the consolidated financial statements of the Group but affect the
disclosure of accounting policies of the Group.

Except for the above ,the new or revised HKFRSs that are effective from 1 April
2023 did not have any material impact on the Council’s accounting policies.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b)  New oramended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group's

financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not

been early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current!

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants'

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback'

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements'

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group performed a preliminary
assessment on the impact of the adoption of these issued but not yet effective
HKFRSs, and expected no significant impact to the Group's results of operations
and financial position upon adoption.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@)  Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations)
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance.

(b)  Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, under
the historical cost convention and are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HKS")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except where otherwise
indicated.

(c)  Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Council and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”). A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Council. Control is achieved when the Council has power over the investee, is
exposed or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee,
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e, existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Council, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
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3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(c)  Basis of consolidation (continued)

Income and expenditure and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the Council and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in the income and expenditure account. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to the income and expenditure account or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

In the Council’s statement of financial position, investment in subsidiaries is
stated at cost less impairment losses.

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)  Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Council, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests which would
result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within total funds, separately from funds attributable to the
Council. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated income and expenditure account and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
surplus or deficit and total comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the Council.
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4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line

method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Hong Kong Productivity Council Building

("HKPC Building”) 50 years
Leasehold improvements
— Office 10 years
— Non-office 3 years
Furniture and equipment 3to 10 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

The gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is recognised in the income
and expenditure account on the date of retirement or disposal.

(c) Intangible assets

Intangible assets mainly comprise computer software. Computer software costs
are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software and are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation of computer
software is charged to the income and expenditure account on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives of 3 years.
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4, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Leases
The Group as a lessee

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost (which
comprises the initial measurement of lease liabilities, initial direct costs,
reinstatement costs, any payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received), and subsequently at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used. Generally, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate. The lease liability is subsequently increased
by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease payments made.

Payments associated with short-term leases (i.e, leases with a lease term of 12
months or less) and low value leases are recognised on a straight-line basis as
expenses in the income and expenditure account.

The Group as a lessor

Rental income is recognised in the income and expenditure account on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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4. BIHBE®@® 4.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() EERE (e)  Impairment of assets

() HERFEFRENHRE (i) Impairment of investment in equity securities

NEBTE GRS R B E IR AN 3 8 855 AR Investments in equity securities that are stated at cost or amortised cost are

AR ERBESFRE UREEEAETEAR reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is
BR - FENREZEEEEEEIEIBEH objective evidence of impairment, which includes observable data that comes

AT — RS RIBAEHNAHREEH to the attention of the Group about one or more of the following loss events:

— REBLBEANMBEE —  Significant financial difficulty of the investee;

— EREH WREEWRSCKRETHEK — A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or

REM principal payments by the investee;
— REERUEHEHEGHENHEMYHER — it becoming probable that the investee will enter bankruptcy or other

financial reorganisation;

— Bt mi5 - KESERRBHRERE —  significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal
EEKEEFENERNED UK environment that have an adverse effect on the investee; and

— REFRENAAEBERZIRHAKZE —  asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in the
A - investee below its cost.

M E QR - REEERZIEE R P U B 2 For investments in subsidiaries, the impairment loss is measured by comparing

HEHRESEELEME - RIZM 40 the recoverable amount of the investment with its carrying amount. The

(i) AABE KBS ENGEEELRTIER impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the

e RN REEEFEeED - estimates used to determine the recoverable amount in accordance with note

4(e)(ii).
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4, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)  Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets

The Group assesses an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL") for all debt
instruments stated at cost or amortised cost. ECL are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECL are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECL are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance
is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable
and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable and contract assets that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECL. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date. The Group has established an
allowance matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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4.

(e)
(iii)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to identify indications that the intangible assets, property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and investments in subsidiaries may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may

have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs
of disposal and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows independently of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash flows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income and expenditure account
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of the assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal, or value-in-use, if determinable.
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4, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)  Impairment of assets (continued)
(iii)  Impairment of other assets (continued)

—  Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of an
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the income and
expenditure account in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

f) Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.

(g)  Accounts payable and accruals

Accounts payable and accruals are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(h)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of original maturities when placed.
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4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()  Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination
benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the
end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related service.
Short term employee benefits are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are recognised as an
expense in the income and expenditure account when the services are rendered
by the employees.

0)] Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in the income and expenditure account except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in funds, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in funds, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary
differences respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred
tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits. Apart from
differences which arise on initial recognition of assets and liabilities, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised.
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4, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
which it is probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be
reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required,
or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities.

) Income recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
income and expenditure, if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is
recognised in the income and expenditure account as follows:

(i) Government subventions

Government subventions for recurrent activities are recognised as income in the
income and expenditure account when there is reasonable assurance that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching with them and that the
subventions will be received. Government subventions that compensate the
Group for expenditure incurred are recognised as income in the income and
expenditure account on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenditure are incurred. Unspent subventions for recurrent activities arising in
the financial year will be retained by the Council as reserves up to a limit as
agreed with the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(“the Government”). Amount in excess of the limit will be returned to the
Government in the following financial year.

(i) Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed.
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4. BIFEE®
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4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Income recognition (continued)
(iii)  Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from service contracts is recognised when control of services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the amount of
consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

Service income is generally recognised over time, using an input method to
measure the progress towards complete satisfaction of the service, because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group or the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date. The input method recognises revenue based
on the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total
costs for satisfaction of the services. Where the criteria for over-time recognition
are not met, service income is recognised at a point in time when control of the
service is transferred to the customer.

(m) Contract assets

A contact asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services
transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods or
services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that
is conditional.

(n)  Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer
for which the Group has received a consideration (or an amount of consideration
that is due) from the customer. If a customer pays the consideration before the
Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract.
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4. BIFEE®
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4, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o) Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property, plant and
equipment, or intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract with a
customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(i) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract that the
Group can specifically identify.

(i) The costs generate or enhance resources of the Group that will be used in
satisfying performance obligations in the future.

(i) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the income and
expenditure account on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of
the revenue to which the asset related is recognised. Other contract costs are
expensed as incurred.

(p)  Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the month are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the average rate for that month. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
exchanges rates ruling at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in the income and expenditure account.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position items are translated
to Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rate at the reporting date.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the exchange reserve.

(q) Capital subvention fund

The capital subvention fund accumulated from the prior years to compensate
the Group for the costs of the subvented assets is recognised in the income and
expenditure account over the useful lives of the subvented assets.
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B & #R 4 FINANCIAL REVIEW

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group
if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii)  is a member of key management personnel of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group.

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in

(a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services to the Group.
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4. BIFEE®

n BIBALE

—AALTHOBR AN EARERETRS
RAETEZRALTHAZERZENRIEKE -

HA B :

() BBALWFRREBXHFEFRE:

(i) ZAATEREBHFABEHENTFLI &

(i) ZAATHEEBRAFBHEHZESA -
5. EXREEHERMMEE

AEBPBHRENERERKEEBEZEMR
FHRA-BR BENABSBEARERN
KEEMNA BB M A e AEERE
BURBMAEFTONEEEATEHARKFBTYHE
FENEESABREASRFHERRE -

AT REEWE KRG BRI BREIA R
AHAEEE MM E MBS R - AT e R BEURK
SITHMEEMEERASENERNRBE

WA TR A B (T

AEEBEREMERNREALER  BETE
BB IS e YR 5 15 5% T 35 BRI A RS ] #E SR
RBBWALEEEZEFREBR R EFOESRER
ERBUWA - HREERFRERNRBKA - K&
BN AETHR R RETEENZAN
WARMA KRR EE - REBATRETIRE
HEANMMEZIERME - REKATRELE
BIREETRAFMMEKA - LiRELELRD
EEEET ~ERBEEERER TEEES
BREREFREERELMNRBEELLE A
EHRE EEEE -

4, ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next reporting period are described below.

Estimate of revenue and costs of work

Depending on the terms of individual contract of services, the Group recognises
its service income over time if the Group has met the criteria in paragraph 35 of
HKFRS 15 or at a point in time when the control of the assets is transferred to the
customer. For service income recognised over time, the Group reviews and
revises the estimates of contract revenue and contract costs prepared for each
contract as the contract progresses. Budgeted service income is determined in
accordance with the terms set out in the relevant contracts. Budgeted service
costs which mainly comprise staff costs and costs of materials are prepared by
experienced management. In order to keep the budget accurate and up-to-date,
management conducts periodic reviews on the management budgets by
comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts incurred.
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5. EARETHEMMEE @ 5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

FEEEEBERENTZ Measurement of expected credit loss allowance

HRNIRBEKN AT ENESREE  HFBHEER The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets at

EEBENFEFTEFHERBR  BIERED amortised cost is an area that requires significant assumptions about future

KEBEBRAREETR- economic conditions and credit behaviour.

BRIBEHHER  HEBAEEBENTENY Significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting

KA T E R - requirements for measuring expected credit loss, such as:

— VEEERRBEZFLINAEE —  Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk; and

— REHGFEEBEMNGEEZAEMNERAR —  Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of
R ° expected credit losses.

NMRERERERENGTEEZEE  BHEES Where the actual result is different from the original estimate, such difference

B2 ABERNATENSRMEEZEAEE - will impact the carrying value of the financial assets at amortised cost and credit

WEEREBEBENEERBE - loss expenses in the period in which such estimate is changed.
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6. Y% BEMRE 6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
£
The Group
HEegsy HKERZE
YENKRE HEIRE Furniture
HKPC Leasehold and g
Building improvements equipment Total
BET T BET T BT T BET T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
20243 A31H 31 March 2024
RE : Cost
M2023F4 A1 H At 1 April 2023 267,854 139,072 261,789 658,715
NE Additions - 33,445 21,305 54,750
k=) Disposals - (8,897) (35,921) (44,818)
BmE Exchange adjustments - (47) (110) (157)
R2024%F 3 A31H At 31 March 2024 267,854 163,573 247,063 678,490
R E - Accumulated depreciation
R2023F4 818 At 1 April 2023 175,157 95,366 206,496 477,019
FERE Charge for the year 5,345 13,628 19,079 38,052
& B ) Written back on disposals - (8,837) (34,939) (43,776)
HE Exchange adjustments - (47) (71) (118)
R2024F 3 A31H At 31 March 2024 180,502 100,110 190,565 471,177
BRENFE - Net book value
20243 A31H At 31 March 2024 87,352 63,463 56,498 207,313
20233 A31H 31 March 2023
FE: Cost
R2022F4H1H At 1 April 2022 267,854 125,961 265,834 659,649
nNE Additions - 23,886 23,161 47,047
HE Disposals - (10,689) (26,997) (37,686)
BB Exchange adjustments - (86) (209) (295)
20233 A31H At 31 March 2023 267,854 139,072 261,789 668,715
Rt E - Accumulated depreciation
R202F 481 H At 1 April 2022 169,811 89,664 213,421 472,896
FERE Charge for the year 5,346 11,716 19,774 36,336
o E B E Written back on disposals - (5,928) (26,557) (32,485)
HhE R Exchange adjustments - (86) (142) (228)
R2023F3 A31H At 31 March 2023 175,157 95,366 206,496 477,019
BREFE Net book value
20233 A31H At 31 March 2023 92,697 43,706 55,293 191,696
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6. Y¥ BENZRE® 6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
E¥ENR
The Council
HERTF HKERZE
YENKRE HEIRE Furniture
HKPC Leasehold and g
Building improvements equipment Total
BET T BET T BT T BET T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
20243 A31H 31 March 2024
RE: Cost
202354818 At 1 April 2023 267,854 138,249 259,856 665,959
NE Additions - 33,445 20,993 54,438
k=) Disposals - (8,897) (35,619) (44,516)
20243 A31H At 31 March 2024 267,854 162,797 245,230 675,881
ZEE Accumulated depreciation
M2023F4 A1 H At 1 April 2023 175,157 94,543 205,260 474,960
FEFE Charge for the year 5,345 13,628 18,897 37,870
& B E Written back on disposals - (8,837) (34,645) (43,482)
20243 A31H At 31 March 2024 180,502 99,334 189,512 469,348
ARMEFRE - Net book value
R2024F3 A31H At 31 March 2024 87,352 63,463 55,718 206,533
202343 A31H 31 March 2023
R : Cost
R2022F4H1H At 1 April 2022 267,854 125,052 263,610 656,516
NE Additions - 23,886 22,813 46,699
HeE Disposals - (10,689) (26,567) (37,256)
R2023F3 A31H At 31 March 2023 267,854 138,249 259,856 665,959
AItIE . Accumulated depreciation
R2022F4H1H At 1 April 2022 169,811 88,756 211919 470,486
FERE Charge for the year 5,346 11,715 19,512 36,573
& B E Written back on disposals - (5928) (26,171) (32,099)
R2023F3 A31H At 31 March 2023 175157 94,543 205,260 474,960
BRENFE - Net book value
R2023F3 A31H At 31 March 2023 92,697 43,706 54,596 190,999
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7. EREE

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

£8 EENR
The Group The Council
BT T BET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
202493 H31H 31 March 2024
FE Cost
7®2023F4H1H At 1 April 2023 65,608 65,496
NE Additions 13,813 13,813
HE Disposal (97) (97)
BE Exchange adjustments (6) -
R2024F3 A31H At 31 March 2024 79,318 79,212
e - Accumulated amortisation
7®2023F4H1H At 1 April 2023 51,965 51,869
FEHE Amortisation for the year 8,563 8,561
HE B[O Written back on disposals (97) (97)
BE Exchange adjustments (5) -
R2024F3 A31H At 31 March 2024 60,426 60,333
BRHEFRE : Net book value
R2024F3 A31H At 31 March 2024 18,892 18,879
202343 A31H 31 March 2023
RE : Cost
R2022F4R1H At 1 April 2022 59,512 59,374
NE Additions 11,206 11,206
& Disposal (5,097) (5,084)
ME Exchange adjustments (13) -
M2023F3H31H At 31 March 2023 65,608 65,496
REr#ey - Accumulated amortisation
R2022F4R1H At 1 April 2022 50,020 49915
FEHH Amortisation for the year 7,048 7,038
BB E Written back on disposals (5,093) (5,084)
BME A Exchange adjustments (10) -
MR2023F3H31H At 31 March 2023 51,965 51,869
BRERE - Net book value
R2023F3H31H At 31 March 2023 13,643 13,627
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8. RHEBLARANKRE 8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
£ENR
The Council
2024 2023
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
JE LG B ERE Unlisted shares, at cost 20,010 20,010
B ORAEEE Less: Impairment loss (1,288) (1,288)
M3 HA31H At 31 March 18,722 18,722
EENRBNBRAREBEARREHARNFBEN Particulars of the Council’s subsidiaries as at the reporting date are disclosed in
FEREMT 1R T ABE - note 1.
9. EBUWERRRHEMGRBEE 9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
56 *ENR
The Group The Council
2024 2023 2024 2023
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
JE W BR 3R Accounts receivable 16,869 17,789 16,533 17,397
AHEE (Mixa) Contract assets (note a) 113,827 97,516 113,014 97,314
TEfT IR Prepayments 50,000 46,742 43,282 41,102
B HIRRA (FisEDb) Contract costs (note b) 69,845 68,473 69,845 68473
12 & AH fib fE UK IR Deposits and other
receivables 77,726 50,455 77,682 49310
328,267 280,975 320,356 273,596
B (B aEC) Less: Impairment (note ¢) (1,549) (1,408) (1,549) (1,408)
326,718 279,567 318,807 272,188
2022641 H - SEFAEE N BB ERERK The balance of accounts receivable at 1 April 2022 for the Group and the Council
#REB D Bl &7 7T 23,447,000 F178 7T 23,447,000 ° were HK$23,447,000 and HK$23,447,000 respectively.

HEND B REHRE RESES  HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2023-24 39



BA & 7 4 FINANCIAL REVIEW

9. EWRRREMRBHEE ®) 9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(continued)

@ BHEE (@)  Contract assets
£H
The Group
2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
EHEBEEER Contract assets arising from
A AR 75 Consultancy 113,315 95,701
=3I Training 492 1,802
BERETRRB Manufacturing support 20 13
BREERS Total contract assets 113,827 97,516
£ENR
The Council
2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BHEEEER Contract assets arising from
BE 8 AR 75 Consultancy 112,502 95,499
=3l Training 492 1,802
LEE TR RE Manufacturing support 20 13
BHEEHRTE Total contract assets 113,014 97314
EREEVSRBEHRBRERT - F5) ®EE Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from consultancy,
YRR BRES RERE TR 2 WA g training, manufacturing support and exhibitions and study mission services as
R AWERERUKI TR ENEL BIEMT the receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion of
RERBHNEGE BRREVNEEZWRAZ performance obligations. Upon completion of performance obligations, the
CHEEHHOHERBKENR - amounts recognised as contract assets are reclassified to accounts receivable.
R20N2F41H  SENEENRNEHNEE The balance of contract assets at 1 April 2022 for the Group and the Council
#5859 Bl &7 7T 85,514,000 K178 7T 85,504,000 © were HK$85,514,000 and HK$85,504,000 respectively.
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9. EUWRFRRHEMRBHEE &)

@ ABAREEM®
RE|ERBEFREEHEENREMT

9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(continued)

(@)  Contract assets (continued)

The expected timing of recovery of the contract assets at the reporting date is as

follows:
£
The Group
2024 2023
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 87,927 80,001
E_FEFRF 2-5 years 25,900 17,515
BREERS Total contract assets 113,827 97,516
*ENR
The Council
2024 2023
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
—F K Within one year 87,113 79,800
F_FRERF 2-5 years 25,901 17,514
EHEERT Total contract assets 113,014 97314
(b) BRI (b)  Contract costs
Bz 6NN AEREERBITSERBEE LD The capitalised contract costs are charged to the consolidated income and
B B 40 2 TS BRF - 42 R B A R A 9 I S ) W A i expenditure account on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of

AR FFAGEMZIRA -

the revenue to which the related cost is recognised, when the Group satisfies
performance obligations of respective service contracts.
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9. EWRRREMRBHEE ®) 9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(continued)

(0 EWERIREHNEERE ()  Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets
ERERRENEETROBERENESE The movements in the allowance for impairment of accounts receivable and
AR contract assets are as follows:
£H
The Group
2024 2023
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RET] At beginning of year 1,408 1,549
SR, CRl ) Net increase/(decrease) 141 (141)
RER Atend of year 1,549 1,408
*ENR
The Council
2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
RE ] At beginning of year 1,408 1,549
SR O ) Net increase/(decrease) 141 (141)
RER Atend of year 1,549 1,408
WEDTRFEZRNESmE B ARERET An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using an allowance
EEHEEBBEMmMET BEXDBREAEHEM matrix to measure expected credit losses. The allowance rates are based on days
BIEREA CTRE AR BHARXEEE (1 past due for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns
EFPERIMFTLR) - ZitERMBIRMELER - (i.e., by customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the probability-
CHREBENENRBREARESEHRAELS weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
- ERMRRRARREERRTBR Z2EEMNE information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
KIEMER - —M 5 - KRR 8 BB 8 conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade
—FIW B8 BEAEFHA T AMEE - receivables are written off if past due for more than one year and are not subject
to enforcement activity.
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9. EUWRFRRHEMRBHEE &) 9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(continued)

(0 EWERAREHNEERE S (c)  Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets (continued)
AT E B B AREEMERREREERR Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the accounts
K& receivable using an allowance matrix:
5 The Group
72024F3H31H At 31 March 2024
B
Past due
DR - =@A
118 A ={@A Bk
B HA Less than 1to3 Over et
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
EHEEEEE Expected credit loss rate 0.050% 1.407% 1.576% 24.50% 1.186%
BRmEAE BT T) Gross carrying amount 117,336 2,558 5,202 5,600 130,696
(HKS$'000)
TEEREEEBIE (B TIL) Expected credit losses 59 36 82 1,372 1,549
(HKS'000)
20233 A31H At 31 March 2023
Past due
N -z =@A
11E A =1&A N
Bl Ef Less than Tto3 Over BET
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
EHEEEEE Expected credit loss rate 0.189% 0.832% 6.805% 41.155% 1.221%
BRAARE (BT IT) Gross carrying amount 108,093 4,087 338 2,787 115,305
(HK$'000)
TEEEEEE (B TIT) Expected credit losses 204 34 23 1147 1,408
(HKS'000)
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9. EWRRREMRBHEE ®)

© EBRERIREVEEREE
EENR

M 202493 H31H

9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(continued)

(c) Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets (continued)

The Council

At 31 March 2024

B
Past due
DR -z =@A
118 A =@A Bk
BN R Less than 1to3 Over @t
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
TEEEEEE R Expected credit loss rate 0.051% 1.407% 1.576% 24.50% 1.196%
BRmEAE (BT r) Gross carrying amount 116,187 2,558 5,202 5,600 129,547
(HKS$'000)
TEHEE BB CB® T ) Expected credit losses 59 36 82 1,372 1,549
(HK$'000)
202343 A31H At 31 March 2023
i1 A1
Past due
DR -z =f@A
118 A =@A LA+
B B Less than 1t03 Over AT
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
TEEEEEE R Expected credit loss rate 0.190% 0.832% 6.805% 42.247% 1.228%
REaEEETT) Gross carrying amount 107,571 4,087 338 2,715 114,711
(HK$'000)
TEHEEEIE CB® TIr) Expected credit losses 204 34 23 1147 1,408
(HKS'000)
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10. & KROTERREHEFR 10. CASH, BANK BALANCES AND FIXED DEPOSITS
£E £ENR
The Group The Council
2024 2023 2024 2023
BT T BT BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
— A AR ERE FEBITFE Fixed deposits with original 297,837 292,908 283,201 289,033
maturities over 3 months
when placed
SRITFERNIR & Cash at banks and on hand 1,563,127 1,704,076 1,543,800 1,674,708
BEMARREKARE Cash, bank balances and fixed 1,860,964 1,996,984 1,827,001 1,963,741

IRITERNTEEFRMEEE  deposits in the statement of
financial position

XRIRE Restricted cash (1,388,577) (1,538,770) (1,388,577) (1,538,770)
=@ AEEIEE EBAITF 3 Fixed deposits with original (297,837) (292,908) (283,201) (289,033)
maturities over 3 months
when placed
RekReFEY Cash and cash equivalents 174,550 165,306 155,223 135,938
MR2024F3A3TE - AENRMNEENRITE Cash at banks of the Council and the Group as at 31 March 2024 included
K E B 7T 1,388,577,000 (20234 : # 7T HK$1,388,577,000 (2023: HK$1,538,770,000) which were placed in separate
1,538,770,000 * fF INE T~ [AIIE B $RTER = B 2R project bank accounts and restricted for the purpose of projects governed by
AREBERSESTEEREMNIEE - HE TX respective Government funding schemes. Any unspent funding, together with
SRIB B W R IER - REARIAERIEB RT the interest income generated in project bank accounts, is returned to the
RPEENNE —HRERN - Government upon completion of the project or termination of the project
agreement.
M2024F3A31 8 £EEMNBRITEREEF K Cash at banks of the Group as at 31 March 2024 included HK$31,231,000 (2023:
£ MR 1T B 58 &7 7T31,231,000 (2023 HK$30,901,000) which were placed with banks in the PRC, the remittance of
F 7 I030901,000) ZEGHRNERFES which is subject to relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
FR BT AR B B SN $5E AR B FE AR BS B o promulgated by the PRC government.
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11. EFEREREREMRERERSE 11. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
58 E£ENR
The Group The Council
2024 2023 2024 2023
BET T BT BT T BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
JE - BR 3K Accounts payable 47,246 66,253 45,839 64,612
A48 E (FMxa) Contract liabilities (note a) 322,999 306,639 316,407 298,242
TEMGRIE Receipts in advance
— BUTERES — Government disbursement 1,245,817 1,363,727 1,245,817 1,363,727
funds
F R ERE (KisEb) Provision for annual leave 7,994 8,773 7,994 8,773
compensation (note b)
JEFTE B R E A K Accruals and other payables 89,743 104,333 87,416 102,926
1,713,799 1,849,725 1,703,473 1,838,280
(@) BHERE (@) Contract liabilities
£ EENR
The Group The Council
2024 2023 2024 2023
BET T BT BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B E PR IR Short-term advances received
from customers
— B R — Consultancy 315,391 291,949 308,799 283,552
— =3 — Training 3,539 7,611 3,539 7,611
— BUEETERRG — Manufacturing support 4,069 7,079 4,069 7,079
AHBERSE Total contract liabilities 322,999 306,639 316,407 298,242

R2002F4818 ~EBREENRBNELHE
BB DR BB IT269,783,000 K% 78 7T

265,328,000 °
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The balance of contract liabilities at 1 April 2022 for the Group and the Council
were HK$269,783,000 and HK$265,328,000 respectively.
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11. ENEREIRREMRBES @ 11. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(continued)

(b) FREGERE (b)  Provision for annual leave compensation
EEMNEEDR
The Group and the Council
2024 2023

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HKS$'000
REL) At beginning of year 8,773 9,140
FTIL R Provision made 18,562 17,848
EE AR EE Utilised in the year (19,341) (18,215)
RER Atend of year 7,994 8,773
BEBEEBEDD) BB —FHEEITZEE Under the Employment Ordinance, staff members who have completed a full
LERFR(BEEZHARAZERH) - Bzt year of services are entitled to take at least seven days of leave (including
REBEREX —RBFAMNEEHT - Sundays and Public Holidays) consecutively within one calendar year. Any staff
MEEBE HAZEFBREES - BIaE member who leaves his or her employment is entitled to annual leave
ERBEREANFREFMHENR A - compensation. She/He is entitled to receive in cash the annual leave pay earned
FRAEEREEREEERSHRBREREF but not utilised. Provision is made for the employees’ untaken annual leave
REVEREEM AT 4R © balances at the reporting date.
12. YW BB R RRE 12. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES
Y NHBRRRIBERERR  THS A Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
REREE - repayable on demand.
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13. FHAEEE 13. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
@ &H (@) The Group
WOAERE HEWE
Office Leased HEE
equipment properties Total
BT BEE T T BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
R2022F4H1H At 1 April 2022 847 14 861
NE Addition - 199 199
FEWE Depreciation for the year (423) 67) (490)
HE Exchange adjustments - 1) ©)
7202393 A31 B K 2023%F4 818 At31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 424 145 569
NE Addition - - -
FERE Depreciation for the year (424) (61) (485)
HE R Exchange adjustments - (8) (8)
R2024%F 3 A31H At 31 March 2024 - 76 76
by ®ENRE (b)  The Council
WAERE
Office equipment
BT
HK$'000
R2022F 4818 At 1 April 2022 847
FERE Depreciation for the year (423)
M2023F3 31 B &2023F4 A1 H At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 424
FEFE Depreciation for the year (424)
7202443 31 H At 31 March 2024 -
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14. HESR®E 14. LEASE LIABILITIES
&8 SENR
The Group The Council
2024 2023 2024 2023
BETFT BET T BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
REA At beginning of year 636 927 466 909
NE Addition - 199 - -
B (BT aE22) Interest expense (note 22) 5 32 - 22
21ff Payments (535) (520) (466) (465)
MERAE Exchange adjustments (9) ) - -
RER At end of year 97 636 - 466
HA BT S IR R AR Reconciliation to the statement of
financial position:
MEARE Current liabilities 77 533 - 466
E =V Non-current liabilities 20 103 - -
M3 A31H At 31 March 97 636 - 466
15. BESE 15. TOTAL FUNDS
& *ENR
The Group The Council
2024 2023 2024 2023
BT B TIT B¥TT B TFT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BEAREBE (@) Capital subvention fund (note a) 87,291 92,969 87,291 92,969
WA E B (BF5E ()  Revenue reserve (note b) 610,925 536,031 587,746 517,539
698,216 629,000 675,037 610,508
BB FHE () Exchange reserve (note c) (306) 1,049
697,910 630,049
JEFERE R = (B 3T (d)) Non-controlling interests (note d) 2,122 2,003
700,032 632,052
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15. #BEE#®) 15. TOTAL FUNDS (continued)
@ EXxEHS (a) Capital subvention fund
SENEENR
The Group and the Council
2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
REA] At beginning of year 92,969 98,685
AR RE Transfer from income and expenditure account (5,678) (5,716)
RER At end of year 87,291 92,969
(b) WAEBNREE (b)  Revenue reserve
£H *ELB
The Group The Council
2024 2023 2024 2023
BETT BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
REH At beginning of year 536,031 492,297 517,539 478,473
FARB Surplus for the year 74,894 43,734 70,207 39,066
RER At end of year 610,925 536,031 587,746 517,539
WAEREEATEBREEAREENRHR This reserve was created for the purpose of recording the Group's and the
TR EIEmRT Council's accumulated surplus or deficit.
(0 BERE () Exchange reserve
58
The Group
2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
RE ] At beginning of year 1,049 3,155
BERBERYEREMNELZE  Exchange differences on translation of financial (1,355) (2,106)
statements of operations in the PRC
RER Atend of year (306) 1,049
RERBEERETARINEBMBHREAME The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from
EHFBERER - the translation of the financial statements of operations outside Hong Kong.
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15. #E £ @)

d) FEREZR

15. TOTAL FUNDS (continued)

(d)  Non-controlling interests

£H

The Group
2024 2023
BT T B FT
HK$’000 HK$'000
REH At beginning of year 2,003 2,006
BRI E Share of exchange reserve (115) (189)
FEEGAR Share of surplus for the year 234 186
RER Atend of year 2,122 2,003

16. EEMZBNBTELR

FERRNEEHED

BRIERFEAZE N BE200F6 B2 HERH
GTEREZHETS) ([(ETik]) B8 - £E N
BALBRFERNEEFDTRHELEMENE
BHRBIERMFE - THRIEAMERE  ZFEEBKX
FrAEmREENRREBEMBRFEENSNE
JE R T 255 4 B BB H9 15% © 2023/2024 4F & B X
[T & B B IR BRI B P LT ER M A &
B ESMBIEEAEIT 026618 (2022/2023 F [
BIL026318) P WRIE RS BFEEEER/ME) -
2023/2024 FEM N B E M BER/EITL2177
8 (2022/2023F & : BIL21318) c £ EHRBE
BECHREEAFEMUEFTE2EHAHN
ESNBNEE®Y -

20232024 F EEE N RBRBUT B 28R K
iR B M BT & B U A BN BR (2022/2023F 5 : A
) e
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16. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTION FOR RECURRENT ACTIVITIES

Annual block grant

In accordance with paragraph 8.1 of the Memorandum of Administrative
Arrangement (“MAA”") dated 22 June 2009 signed between the Government and
the Council, the Council is allowed to keep any savings from its annual block
grant as reserves. At any one point in time the level of accumulated savings from
the Council’s annual block grant shall not exceed 15% of its annual block grant
in the current financial year. The government subvention for the year of 2023/24
includes the grant from Innovation and Technology Fund for Automotive Parts
and Accessory Systems R&D Centre of HK$26.6 million (2022/23: HK$26.3 million)
which is not classified as annual block grant. The total block grant of the Council
for the year of 2023/24 was HK$217.7 million (2022/23: HK$213.0 million). The
annual block grant from the Government in the current and prior years has been
fully expended by the Council in accordance with the MAA.

The annual block grant of the Council for the year of 2023/24 was entirely
accounted for as Government subvention income in the income and
expenditure account (2022/23: same).
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17. BR#UW A 17. SERVICE INCOME
£ £ENR
The Group The Council
2024 2023 2024 2023
B 5 BET T BT BET T BT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

KEEFAEHZYWA  Revenue from contracts with

customers
— Bk — Consultancy 718,897 617,370 682,281 584,342
— &3 — Training 12,592 23,589 12,557 23,589
— BUER TR — Manufacturing support 16,637 17,334 16,637 17,335
—REEeKERE  — Exhibitions and study mission 5,921 3911 4,874 3,911
— BAEBESFZER  — HongKongJockey Club @) 7,119 7,593 7,119 7,593
15 B funded project
KEEFAKNZ Total revenue from contracts with ~ (b) 761,166 669,797 723,468 636,770
FEN N customers
eI A Grant income
— BB IR B — Government funded projects 86,676 82,231 86,676 82,231
847,842 752,028 810,144 719,001
() HBZE204F3ANAEFE - £ENBDWE (@) Allocation from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust is for operating an
BREERERSETESHEIT6379000(2022/23 information technology consultancy service and capacity building programme for
B 7T5891,000) ¢ AR IR T AR 45 R 1 non-governmental organisations and HK$6,379,000 (2022/23: HK$5,891,000) have
= BRI RIS AL HEREE - been received during the year ended 31 March 2024
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17. BRIEWA (@) 17. SERVICE INCOME (continued)
(b) FERUA MBS (b)  Timing of revenue recognition
£H YENR
The Group The Council
2024 2023 2024 2023
BET T BT T BETT BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
RE R REE Ata pointin time 149,371 171,164 149,371 171,164
BE R I HERS Over time 611,795 498,633 574,097 465,606
KABFEA#X 2#EI A Total revenue from contracts with
customers 761,166 669,797 723,468 636,770
(0 TRERRABEHERAZKASRE  HR () Revenue recognised in the current reporting period that was included in contract
WEBVIIFAGHEEN liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:
2024 2024
£l EENR
The Grou The Council
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
AR AR 7% Consultancy 168,824 161,759
=3 Training 3,485 3,485
BUEETIRRG Manufacturing support 2,936 2,936
175,245 168,180
2023 2023
&= EXENB
The Group The Council
BT BT
HKS'000 HK$'000
A AR 75 Consultancy 119,643 115,553
H Al Training 3,985 3,985
BEZETIRRG Manufacturing support 3,320 3,320
126,948 122,858
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17. BRIEWA (&) 17. SERVICE INCOME (continued)
d) EBHER (d)  Performance obligations
EE—ESHEEEROBEANS  BOEEE For service income recognised at a point in time, the performance obligation is
TERK IR AR 75 B EE K o BERT B HE R FESR A LA satisfied upon delivery of services. For service income recognised over time, the
mE BHEEHEERERBOEMBEME performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are rendered. Short-term
B o —RRATIRMARISRIZ R E P TR ETEI K advances are normally required before rendering the services.
18. Hfk A 18. OTHER INCOME
&5 EENR
The Group The Council
2024 2023 2024 2023
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
e WA Rental income 6,635 3232 6,635 3,231
FMEWA Interest income 12,877 6,518 12,635 6,340
EAET PN Sundry income 11,495 8,008 11,348 7,796
BT 4 B Government grants 14,304 4252 14,304 4252
45,311 22,010 44,922 21,619
19. BEHE 19. STAFF EMOLUMENTS
£H £ENRB
The Group The Council
2024 2023 2024 2023
BT T BT T BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
& KT B Salaries and variable pay 455,934 421,243 445,814 412,346
K m & Gratuities 2,934 3,588 2,934 3,588
FREF TE - BER & E {28k Overtime, subsistence and other 17,016 17,401 17,016 17,401
allowances
BETHAE — FEM-  Pension costs — defined contribution 33,243 32,019 33,243 32,019
HEl plans
BERNEE Medical benefits scheme 7,996 8,051 7,996 8,051
517,123 482,302 507,003 473,405
Br _Eatsh - B B X %8 T 42,567,000 (2023 4 ¢ In addition to the above, staff costs amounting to HK$42,567,000 (2023:
A 7022,557,000) BEEFASB REENBEE N HK$22,557,000) have been charged to project related expenses of the Group and
A o the Council.
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20, SREBAETM 20. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION
ARERABRENEEREENREHRRE The aggregate remuneration (salaries, allowances, benefits-in-kind and provident
T ER M BN (& ~ 28 - EMRAFMAES fund contributions) received by the senior management for their services
M) BT rendered to the Group and the Council are listed as follows:
SEREENR
The Group and the Council
2024 2023
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
H2EY - BH Mohamed Din Butt, Executive Director 5,423 5328
RIEFE - BREAIFTAE Lawrence Cheung, Chief Innovation Officer 4,073 3,784
RO BREGAE Edmond Lai, Chief Digital Officer 4,009 3814
MIEE - HEEEBE Vivian Lin, Chief Operating Officer 3,511 3,254
17,016 16,180
21, AEHRESERRENEM 21. REMUNERATION OF MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL
RER FENRTEREMEEEXNENE During the year, the Chairman and other members of the Council did not receive
FhE A4 E 7 BIR A AR 7S U BT {2023 any remuneration for their services rendered to the Council (2023: Nil).
F:F) o
22. HfixH 22. OTHER EXPENSES
£8 *ENR
The Group The Council
2024 2023 2024 2023
BT T BETIT BETT BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
— B RITB X General and administrative expenses 65,304 67,306 63,331 65,953
EEMEE Project related expenses 421,714 360,802 402,196 344,028
HE Y - BUE MR M E5 18 Loss on disposal of property, plant and 977 5,187 946 5,148
equipment
BEEEMNTDEEBRE Loss on disposal of intangible asset - 4 - -
weE Depreciation
— M BEMEE — property, plant and equipment 38,052 36,336 37,870 36,573
— FREEE — right-of-use assets 485 490 424 423
A B Amortisation of intangible assets 8,563 7,048 8,561 7,038
HEABRZNEA Interest expense on lease liabilities 5 32 - 22
% 1R B & Auditor's remuneration 1,067 1,027 531 500
HMIEY Sundry expenses 14,671 13,916 14,048 13,463
550,838 492,648 527,907 473,148
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23. FrB%

23. INCOME TAX

(@) HFREWZREFTWMERS: (@)  Income tax in the consolidated income and expenditure account
represents:
£H
The Group
2024 2023
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
NER— FHHE AN Current tax — outside Hong Kong

FERE Provision for the year 115 167

HREENRERGRBREBEEB(RBEL)F
87T IRF RN AT RNIA  HIt BARME
AR -

HREENBRNEEWNBRRREE2024F3
A3BFERNERRIHRERN WA BELEFHE
RS T (2023 4F « ##)

BIFFBE BERB BB F2022F H 135
203F 650 203F B NHFRAE(E—FEE
INECERMSRERRE) £ENRBNFEH
WP A R T B R B FRERATIAE
EABAARBIO0ETH  EZSREH25%
(20234 : 25%) BB - Bl & A& 20% (2023 F -
20%)  FREMTAMSHEBBARE 108 TE
ERARE300ETTH - L% FBEER 25% (2023
1 25%) B - BEER B 20% (2023 4F 1 20%) ¢ 4F
FEANTRFTSERE B A REE 3008 TTH) » #25% K
B (2023 4F = 25%) 490

The Council is not subject to Hong Kong profits tax as the Council has been
granted exemption from all Hong Kong taxes by the Inland Revenue Department
under Section 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax for the Council's Hong Kong subsidiaries
has been made as they did not have assessable profit during the year ended 31
March 2024 (2023: Nil).

According to the Announcement of No.13 (2022), No.6 (2023) and No. 12 (2023)
issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State Taxation Administration of the
PRC, “Further Implementing Income Tax Preferential Policies for Small and Micro
Enterprises”, the tax rate for the Council's Mainland subsidiaries are charged at a
reduced rate as below: for the annual taxable profits not exceeded RMB1 million,
25% (2023: 25%) of such amount is taxable with a tax rate of 20% (2023: 20%); for
annual taxable profits exceeded RMB1 million but less than RMB3 million, 25%
(2023: 25%) of such amount is taxable with a tax rate of 20% (2023: 20%); for
annual taxable profits exceeded RMB3 million, such amount will be taxable at a
tax rate of 25% (2023: 25%).
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23. Fis® @

(b) BEZHESHBRBUEARRELNS (b)

23. INCOME TAX (continued)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting surplus at

iR applicable tax rates:
£H
The Group

2024 2023

BETT BT T

HK$’000 HKS$'000

R 5 B & 4 Surplus before taxation 69,565 38,371
REBAREEEREANRE Notional tax on surplus before taxation, calculated at 10,753 5,650

AERNAI RSN EENIE rates applicable in the jurisdictions concerned

HBEFRMBRANRIBEZZ Tax effect of non-taxable income (181,438) (161,713)
AR H R & Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 170,800 156,230
ERBIEZ L Income tax expense 115 167

© HEUBRRRECSHIRSE

() Movement in tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial

position:

The Group
2024 2023
BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
REA] At beginning of year 46 162
FERE Provision for the year 115 167
BRI ERERERH PRC corporate income tax paid (107) Q71)
hE R Exchange adjustments (19) (12)
RER At end of year 35 46
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23. FiB8%i (&
d) ELEHEBEESEEREE:

EREHRR  SEAEBIEEELNABIT1,895000
(20234 : B J01,747000) Al BEE D2 S H IR
BEANMB AR RRERBFE -EEER
B BARKEREEESAEARRERNAE
AR IS B8 - BT AR ST S B E E B R
RIEERIBEE - Al AERNHEEE (AR
AT A R A B ] B EIR N R B ES 1B R HM)
AERPAERNZELREENHNE RN
KRRERRABE - FEANMHE LR BEEOHA
VR INFL I8 E5 18 A% 70 62,000 (2023 F : BT
86,000) ' BIERFANEH -

RIEBECEMASTEREEES  RREMNAHAE
RERANMEPBEBENSE R LEE  E¥15
Pk BaR L igrs 2 XEMMIEEREEIER
BEZAOFEMBE BB RLEE &
2 BAEBRAEZEE S EMERE
BERBE  REZSHEFIRBEKRERPEE
We ELERT  ARAMHE AR REINE
B BE 5 e B IR B B 42 10% ok 5B K AY 15 8 A R
BB c A EEBERANEBI10% 4546
BRI ERTENB AR EFOE T
17,462,000 (2023 4F : 7T 14,268,000) K B B 14 =
BEEHRIEER B

BEEREMR  PENRHK B QR MR2024 4%
3A3TBM2023F3 A3 BN RS EEFETE
BRARBERAER - AL ARAEEEENE
ST ERE Oy BEREEER
AERMARTEED Bt - AEBIW AT
$%l¢lf¥ﬂ%$ﬁM§ﬂmﬁmﬁﬁ%
BIEFTEIRBEE -

EBMR2024F3 831 HFM2023F3831 B I &E
/,\%Eﬁnumij( L%RIEELE °©

23. INCOME TAX (continued)

(d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tax losses of approximately
HK$1,895,000 (2023: HK$1,747,000) that are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of subsidiaries in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of these tax losses as, in the opinion of the
management, it is uncertain whether sufficient future taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised. Unused tax losses (except
those related to a subsidiary in China) can be carried forward without time limit.
The subsidiary in China has unused tax losses of HK$62,000(2023: HK$86,000)
which will expire in five years.

Under the EIT Law and Implementation Regulations, PRC withholding income
tax is applicable to interest and dividends payable to investors that are “non-tax
resident enterprises’, which do not have an establishment or place of business in
the PRC, or which have such establishment or place of business but the relevant
income is not effectively connected with the establishment or place of business,
to the extent such interest or dividends have their sources within the PRC. Under
such circumstances, dividends distributed from the PRC subsidiaries to off-shore
group entities shall be subject to the withholding tax at 10% or a lower treaty
rate. For the Group, the applicable tax rate is 10%. Deferred taxation has not
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$ 17,462,000 (2023: HKS$14,268,000).

The Members of the Council affirm that the undistributed earnings of the PRC
subsidiaries as of 31 March 2024 and 2023 will be reserved for the expansion of
operations. Consequently, the Group has not provided for the deferred tax
liabilities in respect of withholding tax on the remaining undistributed earnings
of the Group’s PRC entities as the Group is capable of controlling the timing of
reversal of such temporary difference, and it is highly likely that such temporary
difference would not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

The Group has no material deferred tax liabilities requiring recognition as at 31
March 2024 and 2023.
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24. &g 24. COMMITMENTS
ERER  MARGEVBREABBHER Capital commitments outstanding at the reporting date not provided for in the
AW consolidated financial statements were as follows:
EEREENR
The Group and the Council
2024 2023
BETT B TFT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R Contracted for 37,713 31,629
25. RERE>HNERMIA 25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
HERER  SFEERITANRESBENT The carrying amounts of each category of financial instruments as at the
reporting date are as follows:
SREE Financial assets
£@ *ENR
The Group The Council
2024 2023 2024 2023
BETT BT T BETT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
LU 85 BR AR 51 2 /9 £ B8 & E Financial assets at amortised cost
JE U BR 3K Accounts receivable 16,869 17,789 16,533 17,397
o T E fb B U G TE Deposits and other receivables 77,726 50,455 77,682 49310
Be - RI7F N E 877 7 Cash, bank balances and fixed deposits 1,860,964 1,996,984 1,827,001 1,963,741
(BF7E10) (note 10)
JE U B /BB A I R IE Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 1,761 1,238
1,955,559 2,065,228 1,922,977 2,031,686
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25. REFETHESRMIA (B 25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)
ERBaE Financial liabilities
58 EENR
The Group The Council
2024 2023 2024 2023
BT T BT BT T BEF T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

LU 85 B A5 51 2 1Y £ B & & Financial liabilities at amortised cost

BIETEMBRFEEM  Financial liabilities included in accounts 1,390,800 1,542,755 1,387,066 1,539,707
HBBECH K AR payable and other current liabilities

HEaE(MEE14) Lease liabilities (note 14) 97 636 - 466

JREA~F BT /B8 2 B RRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 13,193 11,685
1,390,897 1,543,391 1,400,259 1,551,858

26. SRIEABEERAAEE 26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

SRR FEEBBEREPEELEE  RPEe - Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest-rate and currency risks arises in the normal

Tl R INE R - 5 LR 2R BEENM B course of the Group’s business. The Group's exposure to these risks and the

BB RRAIMNAER - BT : financial risk management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below:

@ FERR (@)  Creditrisk

SENEERREZERERITER  EHFER The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to bank balances, fixed deposits,
BHEERBYIRN - EBEEHRIEEEEE - contract assets and accounts receivable. Management has a credit policy in
I EFEEEEERREE place and exposure to credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.
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26. cRIAREERAAEBE S

@ EERRE

JR2024F3 31 HF12023F 3 31 HBIRF/E
BRFEZEER

TREH PR 20243 A31 B M2023FE3 831 H
ERAEBENEERRNEEERARREE
R (EBERBEER  BRIFELMBERTEE
BANETUERALE NNIBERTES) RF

BB -

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

(@)  Creditrisk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 March 2024 and 2023

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit
risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without undue cost or effort,
and year-end staging classification as at 31 March 2024 and 2023.

s
The Group
+=M@A
FEHA
FEEFR
Exposure
to 12-month
expected ZHIFEHMEESE
credit loss Exposure to lifetime expected credit losses
b7 %
F1HEE F2BE  E3ME  Simplified e
7"202453 A31H As at 31 March 2024 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 approach Total
BT BET BT BT BETx
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
JE U BR 51 * Accounts receivable* - - - 16,869 16,869
EREE Contract assets - - - 113,827 113,827
& M E b fE U IR Deposits and other receivables
— IEE** — Normal** 77,726 - - - 77,726
/& ~ IRITF S JE Bi1F 3K Cash, bank balances, and fixed deposits 1,860,964 - - - 1,860,964
1,938,690 - - 130,696 2,069,386
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26. SRIAMEERAAEBEG

@ EERREE

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

(@)  Credit risk (continued)

£H
The Group
+—f@A
S
EEEE
Exposure
to 12-month
expected > HBEBEEBE
credit loss Exposure to lifetime expected credit losses
iM%
FIRE 2R F3MEER Simplified Gk
M2023F3A31H As at 31 March 2023 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
BT B¥Tr BE¥Tr B¥%Tr BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R U5 B Accounts receivable* - - - 17,789 17,789
BHEE Contract assets - - - 97,516 97,516
125 A H fib FEUGRIR Deposits and other receivables
— [EE — Normal** 50,455 - - - 50,455
B4 - R171F 5 K F B3 77 7K Cash, bank balances, and fixed deposits 1,996,984 - - - 1,996,984
2,047,439 - - 115,305 2,162,744

* LA B R R E RO ER YRR ME WBEM S
AR B AR ENN Y BIRRMTOHRE

= EAEREENRMABDEEY AANAYERER
BTIZEeREEB VIR RNEERBR KR L
THE - ZEBEMNEEERWRAIER]

MR2024F3A318  EEAKREF K EUWERK
1 FE YR BR FR 4B B B9 51% (2023 4F : 47%) ©

MR2024F3A31H  EERAARABEFNAGNEE
THERBEETEN71% (20234 : 68%) ©

EREEEERRMNE—SHESNT  JIRR
BsEQ o

For accounts receivable and contract assets to which the Group applies the simplified approach
for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 9.

*¥

The credit quality of the financial assets included in other current assets are considered to be
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 31 March 2024, 51% (2023: 47%) of the total accounts receivable was due
from the Group's five largest customers.

As at 31 March 2024, 71% (2023: 68%) of the total contract assets related to the
Group's five largest customers.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk
arising are set out in note 9.
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26. TRIEBREERAABE®E 26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)
(@ EEREE (@)  Credit risk (continued)
*¥ENR
The Council
+=@A
A
FEBER
Exposure
to 12-month
expected ZHFEHEEEER
credit loss Exposure to lifetime expected credit losses
BB %E
FIER F2lR  F3EER Simplified i

7"202463 A31H As at 31 March 2024 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 approach Total

BETRT RBRE®TR BETR BETR BE¥Tx
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

JE M BR 3 Accounts receivable* - - - 16,533 16,533
BREE Contract assets - - - 113,014 113,014
FE UL BT B A B FRIE Amount due from subsidiaries 1,761 - - - 1,761
125 A H fib FE UGRIR Deposits and other receivables -

— [EE* — Normal** 77,682 - - - 77,682
He ~ RT177F T 8977 7K Cash, bank balances, and fixed deposits 1,827,001 - - - 1,827,001

1,906,444 - - 129,547 2,035,991

HEND B REHRE RESES  HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2023-24 B9



BA & 7 4 FINANCIAL REVIEW

26. cRIAEREERAAEBE®G

@ EERREE

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

(@)  Credit risk (continued)

HENRB
The Council
TfEA
TEHA
EEEE
Exposure
to 12-month
expected > HBEBEEBE
credit loss Exposure to lifetime expected credit losses
SRS
FIRE 2R F3MEER Simplified Gk
M2023F3A31H As at 31 March 2023 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
BT B¥Tr BE¥Tr B¥%Tr BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R U5 B Accounts receivable* - - - 17,397 17,397
BHEE Contract assets - - - 97314 97,314
JRE U B BB A R R IE Amount due from subsidiaries 1,238 - - - 1,238
125 A H fib FE UGRIR Deposits and other receivables
— EE* — Normal** 49,310 - - - 49,310
He ~ RT7T1F T 8377 7K Cash, bank balances, and fixed deposits 1,963,741 - - - 1,963,741
2,014,289 - - 114711 2,129,000

* AR BREARESCENBBIERNEHNEEN
F o OABEERAEBNER NI BIRRMEORE -

. EASREENEOADEEY AN B TEER
BIZEoREEBVINERARNEERR KR L
THE - REBREMNEEERWRAIER]

R2024F3A31B £SENBEARABFPHER
BR X (H FE UL BR FRABZE MY 51% (2023 6F  46%) ©

R2014FIANB - EENREAEFLNAYN
BELMAHNEEBETERNT71% (2023 F : 68%) °

MNEENBREBESRREERRAE T
BEON - JIRIRHIEES

For accounts receivable and contract assets to which the Council applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 9.

*%

The credit quality of the financial assets included in other current assets are considered to be
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 31 March 2024, 51% (2023: 46%) of the total accounts receivable was due
from the Council’s five largest customers.

As at 31 March 2024, 71% (2023: 68%) of the total contract assets related to the
Council’s five largest customers.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Council ‘s exposure to credit
risk arising from accounts receivable are set out in note 9.

60 =E1E BYEETRESRIERSE  HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2023-24



B & #R 4 FINANCIAL REVIEW

26. TRIEAREERQAABE® 26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

(b) RBESERR (b)  Liquidity risk

SENBRETHEERBE ST K - LUBRE The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure
HRRAETNESREE ENIHNENERE that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to satisfy its contractual and
BAEEMEERTE - reasonably foreseeable obligations as they fall due.
TRAFNHFTEVBABRRERB 2 The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the
AHEEER  WIHIREBEFTORUMRBERE reporting period of the non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on the
(BENTONEAEZFEZHE B RFEH contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed
ZARREBEREACABAMEAEZFEX using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the reporting
P RAEEREENRARZENRZE F date) and the earliest date the Group and the Council can be required to pay.

BAH#MmSH

2024
HWETH
RIFH iR —FE
HeRhE R—FR NBRF
Total REER More than
BRMEE  contractual Within 1 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted year or on less than
amount cash flows demand 2 years
BETT BETT BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
568 The Group
HEEE (MzEi14) Lease liabilities (note 14) 97 929 79 20
BIEEREMBER R EAM RSB Financial liabilities included in accounts 1,390,800 1,390,800 1,390,800 -
BB BAE payable and other current liabilities
1,390,897 1,390,899 1,390,879 20
*ENR The Council
BIEE B IR AR B Financial liabilities included in accounts 1,387,066 1,387,066 1,387,066 -
BEZYBARE payable and other current liabilities
FERTBE A RIFRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 13,193 13,193 13,193 -

1,400,259 1,400,259 1,400,259 -
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26. SRIEABEERAABE® 26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)
(b) RBESER(E) (b)  Liquidity risk (continued)
2023
HETH)
RITIR HiE—FE
ReRE R—FR /)N R A
Total S EE K More than
BREE contractual Within 1 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted year or on less than
amount cash flows demand 2 years
BETIT BETIT BET T BET T
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
£8 The Group
HEBE (fit14) Lease liabilities (note 14) 636 643 539 104
B FEFE FE AT BR B N H MR B) Financial liabilities included in accounts 1,542,755 1,542,755 1,542,755 -
BEZHBAEE payable and other current liabilities
1,543,391 1,543,398 1,543,294 104
*¥EIR The Council
HEBE (iE14) Lease liabilities (note 14) 466 466 466 -
BFERTE FE BR B E AR B Financial liabilities included in accounts 1,539,707 1,539,707 1,539,707 -
BECYBEE payable and other current liabilities
FEAS BB A &1 3k IE Amounts due to subsidiaries 11,685 11,685 11,685 -
1,551,858 1,551,858 1,551,858 -
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26. TRIEAREERQAABE® 26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)
(© RI=EE (c) Interest rate risk
SENBRBBAITEERFERR The Council considers that there is no significant exposure to interest rate risk.
d) IMERERE (d)  Currency risk
HEENBRBE L EERINER R The Council considers that there is no significant exposure to currency risk.
(e) EXER (e) Capital management
SEMATH[ER] @%%P@;ﬁ%mﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂzﬁﬁ The Group defines “capital” as including all components of total funds. Trading
SETERAEAREMEERARIETRIE balances that arise as a result of trading transactions with other group
BEENRZEBRBER - companies are not regarded by the Group as capital.
@ EREANBEEERRREEBBRENF The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Fiee URBREBEN AR RKZFE Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to enable the Group to meet
EI'J afE- its liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future.
SHEREENERNERAT  THEHLE The Group's capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard
BEBENEAZERE EXAFERANFEE & to the capital management practices of the Group. Neither the Council nor its
ENRBREAEMANE D BB E S E SN RN subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirement in the current
BARIRTEPTIRR - and prior years.
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27. BEBARS 27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
BRAMBMEZERBENR S RESRIN &F In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these
BRRNFNETUTEBRIRS financial statements, the Group entered into the following related party

transactions during the year:

SENBHEEENERBAENITHRREREZRE Council Membership of the Council is appointed by the Chief Executive of the

HRBNASEENRBEEERATZE N Ut Government. The Government has significant influence over the Council, and

SENRBEBRFNzEHORZIWREEH TS transactions between the Council and the Government are considered to be

WRABRBEANSRAINR - FRN - AENBGHE related party transactions and are identified separately in these financial

BN REENRBEEGK ST TR T statements. During the year, the Council had the following related party

2 transactions with the Government and Council Members:

2024 2023
BET T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000

IWENBURE B - AREEMEIEE Receipt of government subvention used for recurrent 244,373 239,283

activities

BT B Government grant 14,304 4252

REBHRBEBA (FisEa) Service income from the Government (note a) 255,256 203,658

KEBMAEBEE MR A (MiFEb)  Service income from government funding schemes 172,167 186,245

(note b)
WABEENREBEEENE Income from entities related to members of the 2,503 3,336
BRI S Council
REEEENREBEEENXE Purchases from entities related to members of the 3,269 2,955
BN HE Council

Bt 5 Notes:

(@) REBNORBUAESRIREERE BEEE & (a) The service income from the Government relates to projects in environmental management,
B XBER WEERFESEE  HFEAE technology development, information technology, business management, secretariat projects
HERHBREFN  WEBRTRBNBPFIRBILE with the Government, etc., which were obtained either by a competitive process or through
R MES - AR B AR A R R BB 5 a8 IR S URER Y - partnership agreements with various government departments and bureaus, and the income

was charged in accordance with the terms of the agreements.

(b) REBRNEDERAERAEE (BRIEARITE (b)  The service income from government funding schemes relates to projects in research and
BHTCER) MEHNEERB 2ER - WEEA development (excluding projects acting as implementation agent) and secretariat projects
B RFE S B BRI R F T R maUS which were obtained by a competitive process or through agreements with Innovation and
T A8 B B9 U 2 12 BR 1 2 16 U ER A o Technology Commission, and the income was charged in accordance with the terms of the

agreements.

28. BIISHERIHLE 28. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A EBREMAEE BN 20457 B18 A E The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Council

WEFAT B o on 18 July 2024.
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